
From: David Portch, Information Asset Officer 

To: Landowner 1 

Dated: 20th March 2023 

___________________________________________________________ 

Ref: F0009937 

Dear XXXXXX 

Thank you for your request for information about Packington Lane 
contained within your letter dated 24 February 2023 which was sent to 
Staffordshire County Council’s Legal Services department. 

I am advised that a copy of an Inclosure Award which relates to the 
matter has already been provided to you. Inclosure Awards are 
considered to be strong evidence to prove or disprove claimed routes 
because the Awards are drafted as a direct result of an Act passed by 
Parliament. 

I understand that the evidence considered by Staffordshire County 
Council used in their determination of this rights of way matter, including 
the Inclosure Award mentioned, is held by the County Records Office. Any 
information held by the county council is therefore available to you by 
other means and therefore exempt from release under section 21 of the 
Freedom of Information Act.  

Information about the Archive Service, the records that they hold, and 
accessing records is available on our website - Heritage and archives - 
Staffordshire County Council 

In so far as the Environmental Information Regulations (EIR) apply, there 
is a statutory process under which public rights of way are determined 
and therefore any information available to the council and used in 
determining a public right of way will be made available, if/as required 
under this process and is considered to be exempt from release under 
regulation 12(5)(b).  

I am advised that it is for objectors to any proposed creation or 
modification of public rights of way to provide their own evidence to 
support their case.  

In summary, this matter needs to be dealt with through the relevant legal 
process. 

If you have any comments relating to how your request for ‘recorded 
information’ has been handled by our authority you should contact us in 
the first instance. Send your comment or complaint to: 



Access to Information Team Manager, Access to Information Team, 
Staffordshire County Council, 1 Staffordshire Place, Stafford ST16 2DH or 
email accessinformation@staffordshire.gov.uk  

If you then have any further comments relating to how your request has 
been handled by our authority, please contact the Information 
Commissioner, Wycliffe House, Water Lane, Wilmslow, Cheshire SK9 5AF, 
or Make a complaint | ICO 

Yours sincerely 

 

David Portch 

Information Asset Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

From: Kate Bullivant, Complaints, Access to Info and School 
Appeals Manager 

To: Landowner 1 

Dated: 26th April 2023 

_________________________________________________________ 

Dear XXXXXX  

Thank you for your email about how Staffordshire County Council have 
handled your request for information (Request reference: F0009937). 

I am sorry that you were dissatisfied with how we have dealt with your 
request. 

I have completed an internal review. The findings of my investigation are 
as follows:– 

• You have been correctly advised that there is a relevant statutory 
process used to determine public rights of way. 

• Please note that providing explanation, opinion or interpretation is 
not within scope of freedom of information legislation. 

• You have been correctly advised that information sources are 
available to you by other means i.e. the council’s Archive Service. 

• A copy of the Inclosure Award is now attached. This will be 
Appendix G in the report to be submitted to Countryside and Rights 
of Way panel. 

• The agenda and report are now published and publicly available on 
the council’s website - Agenda for Countryside and Rights of Way 
Panel on Friday 21st April 2023, 10:00am - Staffordshire County 
Council At the time of responding to your request this information 
was not available. 
 

I have liaised with colleagues in our Legal Services department regarding 
the information and advice they provided in the first instance and have 
been advised as follows:- 

“With regard to your formal request for documentary evidence that Lord 
Weymouth previously owned Packington Lane in Hopwas, I would like to 
clarify that the Inclosure Award doesn’t suggest or state that the alleged 
Right of Way in question was granted by Lord Weymouth. Paragraph 72 of 
the Officer’s report quotes from the Inclosure Award itself, and it is the 
Commissioners who were appointed to ascertain, set out and appoint the 
public rights which are referred to in this Award. The Award does not say 
that Lord Weymouth has granted rights, Lord Weymouth is only 
mentioned in the context of owning properties alongside which the route 



runs, but it does not state that he owns the route or has granted rights 
over it.  

The report which has been sent to you includes a tracing of the Inclosure 
map which was submitted by the applicant and can be found in Appendix 
C of the documentation. The report also includes a photograph of the 
actual Inclosure Map which can be found at Appendix G. I attach another 
copy of Appendix G for your information.  

The original documents are held in Staffordshire Record Office, Eastgate 
Street, Stafford, Staffordshire ST16 2LZ for any member of the public to 
view should they wish to do so.  

The report will be considered by the Countryside and Rights of Way panel 
on 21st April 2023. Copies of your letters and the County’s responses to 
those letters will be appended to the report which will be made public.” 
If you still have further comments relating to how your request has been 
handled by our authority, please contact the Information Commissioner, 
Wycliffe House, Water Lane, Wilmslow, Cheshire SK9 5AF, or Make a 
complaint | ICO 

Regards 

 

 



From: Landowner 1  

To: Stephanie Clarkson 

Dated: 4th June 2023 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Good Morning Stephanie,  

 
As promised please find attached further letter and photograph with regards to alleged footpath 
A51 to B5404. 
 
Regards 
 
 
 









From: Stephanie Clarkson 

To: Landowner 1 

Dated: 6th June 2023 

___________________________________________________________ 

 

Dear XXXXX, 

Many thanks for your letter and I note your apologies concerning the 
delay in your response. I do hope that you are now fully recovered. 

In response to your query regarding the Countryside and Rights of Way 
Panel, I would advise that the Panel comprises of seven elected County 
Councillors.  Information about the individual members of this Panel can 
be found on the Council’s website.  The question on which the Panel has 
to make a decision is whether or not the alleged route already exists in 
law as a public footpath.  Consequently, the Panel can only consider the 
evidence relating to this question.  It is not entitled to consider matters 
which are not relevant to this question, such as safety concerns.   
Unfortunately, I am not able to answer the question regarding roadside 
footpaths should the Order be confirmed, as it is outside the remit of the 
Countryside and Rights of Way Panel.  

Should the Panel determine that the evidence is, on a balance of 
probabilities, sufficient to add the route to the Definitive Map of Public 
Rights of Way, then the County will make a Definitive Map Modification 
Order.  Any person can object to the Order, and the matter would then be 
referred to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 
who will hear arguments from all parties, and will then decide, based on 
the evidence, whether or not to confirm the order.  

In relation to the line of the claimed footpath, it may be possible to apply 
for a diversion if there is a suitable alternative available.  If you wish to 
do so, please let me know.  As explained above, the decision to be made 
is whether or not the route exists in law already. There is a legal maxim 
“once a highway always a highway” which means that if public rights are 
established over a particular route, those rights can only be extinguished 
by way of a Legal Order such as a Stopping up Order or a Diversion 
Order, irrespective of whether or not the route has fallen into disuse.  No 
evidence of any such Order was discovered during the investigation and 
therefore it if is determined that these public rights exist historically, 
then, in the absence of any such Stopping up or Diversion Order, the 
rights will remain in existence. 



The Panel will receive a copy of the final report one week prior to the 
Panel meeting, which will also include an addendum regarding your 
further correspondence and the Council’s responses.  There will also be a 
verbal presentation made to the Panel at the Panel meeting which will 
summarise the report, and Members will be able to ask questions if they 
wish before making their decision.   

Kind regards 

Stephanie 

 




